
Town of Newcastle
Ad-Hoc Historic Preservation Ordinance Committee

Agenda
Meeting Date: April 26, 2023 at 5:00PM

Location: Fire Station Community Room, 86 River Road

1. Call to Order
2. Review of minutes of previous meeting: February 16, 2023, March 23, 2023 &

April 6, 2023
3. Overview of Historic Preservation Ordinance, Draft 3 changes (Isabelle)
4. Discussion of Ordinance items flagged for additional direction (Committee, w/

discussion facilitated by Isabelle)
5. Public comment (an opportunity for members of the public to comment on

items on or o� the agenda related to the Committee’s work)
6. Other Committee comments/discussion
7. Adjournment

Next meeting: May 17th, 2023 at 5:00PM



Town of Newcastle

Historic Preservation Ordinance Committee

Meeting Date 2/16/23 at 4pm

At the Town Community Room (Fire Station)

Members Present: Ben Frey, Karen Paz, Bonnie Stone, Catherine Burke, Tor Glendinning
Staff Present: Isabelle Oechslie, Town Planner

Minutes

1. Introductions: Committee members introduced themselves and shared what brought them to
wanting to serve on the Committee. Comments centered around protection of the feeling of
the village, a desire to preserve historic assets for future generations, protecting the
quintessential “Maine identity” found in old houses, protecting the energy that doesn’t exist in
new construction, ensure that we remind ourselves and future generations of the history of
Newcastle.

2. Committee Viewpoints: Tor asked Committee members to share their thoughts on how they
think that a Historic Preservation Ordinance will provide value to the Town and how they would
like to see the Historic Preservation Ordinance perform.

Viewpoints from the Committee included the following:

● Ensuring that standards mesh well with the Core Zoning Code, but don’t rely on “good
people serving on Committees” (ensuring that standards are specific, not subjective)

● Interested in creating an Advisory Committee that would share resources and provide
guidance to property owners interested in preserving their historic property, while
ensuring that renovations fit in well with our valuable historic districts and resources
(There was discussion surrounding whether this Advisory Committee should be its own
appointed Committee, or if duties should fall to the Planning Board. The point was
made that it is often difficult to find volunteers to serve on Committees, and this
Committee requires specialized expertise that may not exist in Newcastle. Alternatively,
the Planning Board is already familiar with reviewing projects, including some aspects
of design review as provided in the Core Zoning Code. Isabelle noted that, if the goal is
to create an Ordinance that would allow for the Town to become a Certified Local
Government, we need to follow the State’s Guidelines for CLGs. Tor asked Isabelle to do
some research into this. Isabelle noted that she would return with a recommendation
at the next meeting.)

● Encourage others to maintain historic integrity

● Toe the line between maintaining the look and feel of the district while not
economically hindering people from maintenance (Isabelle suggested perhaps creating
an alternative materials list, so that property owners are not just limited to slate roofing
for example but could find something that looks similar while being more
cost-effective)

● Need to understand how new construction will fit in within established historic districts
(Discussion occurred on whether the Town should rely on existing standards within the
Core Zoning Code or if standards for new construction should be included in the
Historic Preservation Ordinance.)

● Balance the need for housing with the need for good design

● Consideration of how the Town will review things (from the road? From all sides of a
structure? How do we protect property owners/neighbors? Or should we just be



focused on protection of the public realm?)

3. The Town Planner’s perspective on how the document could perform for our town and review

of the Planner’s scope of work: Isabelle provided the Committee with her detailed scope of

work document, noting that Phase 1 will be focused on working with the Committee to draft

the Ordinance. The initial meeting(s) of the Committee will be focused on educating the

Committee and the public about the importance of a historic preservation ordinance, what a

historic preservation ordinance does and does not do, and the benefits of adoption of a

Historic Preservation Ordinance for property owners and for the Town as a whole. Isabelle

suggested at least one public forum (in addition to the public meetings of the Committee),

noticed to every property owner who might be impacted by the proposed Ordinance, to

ensure that people are aware of the above.

The goal of Phase 1 will be to finalize a draft Historic Preservation Ordinance that will be

adopted by the Town at a Special Town Meeting in Fall of 2023, after following the required

procedures for zoning amendments in the Town and as outlined in State Statutes.

Phase 2 will focus on implementing the Ordinance. IOV Community Planning + Consulting

(Isabelle, as the Consultant) will create application forms and review memo/findings

templates related to historic preservation projects and will train staff/town officials in

reviewing said projects. In addition, the Consultant will provide assistance to Town staff to

apply for Certified Local Government status with the Maine Historic Preservation Commission,

in order for the Town to be eligible for grants related to historic preservation.

Finally, the Consultant will create a Guidelines for Review document related to each standard

of the Historic Preservation Ordinance, showing examples of good (approvable) versus bad

(unapprovable) proposals that can be provided to applicants and Town officials as a resource.

4. Committee’s scope of work: The Committee will be tasked with providing input on documents
as drafted by Isabelle and in bringing periodic updates back to their neighborhood in order to
build support for the Ordinance and for historic preservation in the community broadly.

5. Meetings schedule: The group scheduled dates for follow-up meetings through May. The
following meeting dates were decided upon (all at 5:00PM): March 14, April 6, April 26, May 17.
Isabelle will upload the dates to the Town’s calendar on the website.

6. Next meeting: March 14th at 5:00PM.

7. Adjournment: Adjourned at 6:10PM.



Town of Newcastle

Historic Preservation Ordinance Committee

Meeting Date 3/23/23 at 5pm

At the Town Community Room (Fire Station)

Members Present: Ben Frey, Karen Paz, Bonnie Stone, Catherine Burke, Tor Glendinning
Also Present: Isabelle Oechslie (Consulting Planner), Mal Carey (Resident)

Minutes

1. Call to Order: In the absence of an elected Chair, Isabelle Oechslie began the meeting at
5:05PM.

2. Overview of Historic Preservation Ordinance, Draft 1: Isabelle gave a presentation reviewing
the comments that the Committee provided her at the February 16th meeting and indicating
how Draft 1 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance addresses the Committee’s comments and
concerns.

Tor noted that he wanted to make sure that the Committee is all on the same page with the
broad goals of this ordinance effort, to ensure that we aren't creating another iteration of the
controversial Design Review Committee. The Committee had discussion surrounding perceived
benefits to being in the State’s Certified Local Government program, and if these perceived
benefits outweigh the perceived cost of following the State’s CLG Guidelines. In general,
Committee members indicated that they appreciate the clout that following state and federal
guidelines would provide and that it would give any Committee enforcing the provisions of this
ordinance legitimacy if we can point to state and federal guidelines for historic preservation.

It was noted that the major problem with the Design Review Committee was that it was way
too broad in the properties that it was trying to manage, but that the people within the historic
districts that this ordinance attempts to regulate actually understand the value and protection
of historic properties and may even appreciate it. Tor noted that there are approximately 74
parcels within the Historic Special District, far less than what the Design Review Committee
regulated.

The Committee agreed that the overall goal of the ordinance should be providing a regulatory
framework that actually works for Newcastle rather than attempting to specifically follow State
guidelines. However, if we end up creating an ordinance that follows State guidelines then we
will consider that an additional win.

Discussion occurred surrounding the number of people that should be on the Historic
Preservation Review Board, the desire for criteria for members of the Review Board to be
beefed up (including a requirement for representation of members from each of the three
historic districts with the Newcastle and a desire for the remaining members to have specific
professional experience), and the Committee's desire for additional standards to differentiate
between “minor” and “major” projects. Isabelle asked the Committee if they believed that
members (of a Review Board) all have to be residents of Newcastle. The Committee seems to
agree that, outside of the representation of residents of each historic district, remaining
members could be people who simply work in Newcastle in a field related to history or historic
preservation.



The Committee asked Isabelle to clarify enforcement provisions in the next draft of the
ordinance as well.

3. Discussion of Ordinance items flagged for additional direction: In her presentation, Isabelle
flagged a number of items that required additional direction and discussion from the
Committee. In answering Isabelle's questions the Committee noted the following:

• Yes, we do need to regulate accessory structures

• Yes, we need specific standards around utilities (but we want to understand how
other communities are regulating solar panels in historic districts)

• Signage can be saved for future amendments to the Core Zoning Code, rather than
being included in this ordinance

In addition, the Committee noted that they want to ensure that Article 8 is clear that inclusion
as a Local Landmark is elective, or at least requires property owner permission. Ben noted that
standards such as “ensure visual compatibility” are too subjective and asked Isabelle in the next
draft to further describe what that actually means (e.g what architectural styles will be
considered, what time period, etc.).

The Committee flagged further discussion of regulating color for another future meeting.

4. Adjournment: Adjourned at 7:17PM.



Town of Newcastle

Historic Preservation Ordinance Committee

Meeting Date 4/6/23 at 5pm

At the Town Community Room (Fire Station)

Members Present: Ben Frey, Karen Paz, Bonnie Stone, Catherine Burke, Tor Glendinning
Also Present: Isabelle Oechslie (Consulting Planner), Mal Carey (Resident), Steve Gaskin (Resident), Bill
Weary (Resident)

Minutes

1. Call to Order: In the absence of an elected Chair, Isabelle Oechslie began the meeting at
5:10PM.

2. Overview of Historic Preservation Ordinance, Draft 2: Isabelle gave a presentation reviewing
the comments that the Committee provided her at the March 23rd meeting and indicating how
Draft 2 of the Historic Preservation Ordinance intends to address the Committee’s comments
and concerns.

General comments on Draft 2 of the Ordinance focused on the importance of employing or
having on retainer a historic preservation consultant that can help the Review Board determine
whether or not applications comply with the standards of the Ordinance. Ben noted that he
feels that it is important that it is clearly spelled out in the Ordinance that the consultant is
required to provide input on (at minimum) Major Projects. There was a question from
Committee members about who would be the Permitting Authority on Minor Projects. Isabelle
clarified that it would be the Town Planner/Planning Department, not the Code Enforcement
Officer. Time to train the Permitting Authority is built into Isabelle’s contract/Scope of Work
with the Town.

Tor asked if we could review all red-lined edits together, which Isabelle facilitated by sharing her
screen with those present. Under the applicability criteria for Minor Project review, the
Committee agreed that fencing is probably a Major Project, as is the installation of accessory
buildings.

While currently exempt, the Committee agreed that routine maintenance and repair should
probably be a Minor Project to ensure that the Town maintains an accurate record of what
people actually commit to doing (including photo documentation).

Karen noted that the definition of architectural features needs to include windows, to make
sure people understand that we are also regulating that.

Ben noted that we already have a definition in the Core Zoning Code for “Additional Structures”
that would apply to the type of sheds that Draft 2 references. Committee agreed that we need
to make sure that definitions that appear in both places cross-reference the Core Zoning Code
(so that if definitions are updated in the future, they only need to be updated in the Core
Zoning Code).

After a question raised by Karen, the consensus of the Committee was that the definition for
public realm needs to include views from the water (the river, Damariscotta Lake).



After discussion, the Committee also agreed that windmills or other energy systems should be
reviewed in the same way that solar panels are. It was noted that the standards would
essentially be the same and suggested that the name of the section regarding solar panels
simply be changed to Energy Generating Systems (or something similar to capture windmills).

After a question raised by Tor, Isabelle clarified that meeting ADA or Life Safety standards would
not be a reason to be exempt from the Ordinance standards, but that applicants would need to
make their project feasible by meeting all applicable local, state, and federal criteria (including
all local ordinances). She will ensure that that is clear in the Ordinance.

Discussion was had about the standards for New Construction that Isabelle proposed. Ben said
that he likes what they’re saying, but they aren’t proscriptive enough to be reviewing standards
and feel more like guidelines. Isabelle suggested that these could be the descriptors in the
forthcoming Design Guidelines Manual (and that she would go back to the drawing board on
coming up with prescriptive standards that don’t use the phrase “ensure visual compatibility”).
The Committee liked that idea and brief discussion occurred around the setup of the Design
Guidelines Manual. Isabelle noted that her vision would be to have a brief guiding description
of each standard, along with photos demonstrating what would be appropriate and what would
not be. Ben noted that anywhere that the standards could have numbers or percentages would
be helpful for the future Permitting Authority and future applicants.

3. Discussion of Ordinance items flagged for additional direction: Isabelle noted in her
presentation that Historic Preservation Ordinances do not typically review color, unless
someone is proposing to impact historic materials (such as painting over brick or stone in a
color that brick or stone is typically not, which would damage brick if removed in the future).
Due to lack of time, the Committee did not provide specific direction on this at this meeting.

4. Opportunity for public comment: Steve Gaskin, Sheepscot Village: Asked for clarification on
how you actually get people to complete maintenance when they’re in legal gridlock or have no
money. Isabelle responded that it becomes a civil matter in court, following attempts by the
Code Enforcement Officer to get them to comply. Steve asked if there is any regulation for the
interior of historic buildings? Committee responded no. Isabelle noted that she has not been
aware of any municipal Ordinances regulating interiors, but if that is a concern a historic
preservation easement through a non-profit such as Historic New England or Maine
Preservation would provide that kind of protection. Steve asked if there could be further
consideration of how far the regulation from streets could be, given that you can see a small
portion of the rear of his house if you squint. He wanted to know how he would be regulated in
that case?

Mal Carey, Resident: Asked for clarification about if the Ordinance can actually regulate
antennas (or if FCC regulations would preempt this Ordinance)? Isabelle responded that she
would do some research.

5. Adjournment: Adjourned at 7:40PM.



To: Historic Preservation Committee
From: Isabelle Oechslie, Planning Consultant
Date: April 26, 2023 Meeting
RE: Draft 3: Historic Preservation Ordinance

BACKGROUND
During our third meeting on April 6, 2023, discussion centered around Draft 2 of the
Historic Preservation Ordinance. We began reviewing the details of the Ordinance
itself, including the applicability criteria for Minor and Major Projects, the standards for
New Construction, and definitions included within the Ordinance.

In terms of edits for Draft 3, what I heard from you all centered around the following:
● Ordinance only references that the relevant Permitting Authority “may” take in

an escrow to hire a consultant meeting the professional qualification standards
as outlined by the Secretary of the Interior (36 CFR 61) to assist in review of
applications (it was noted that this should always happen for, at minimum, Major
Projects)

● The installation of Accessory buildings and fencing should probably be
considered Major Projects, not Minor

● Routine maintenance and repair should be Minor Projects, so that the Town has a
paper trail of what the applicant is proposing to ensure that the project is
completed to approved specifications

● Under Article 12: Definitions:
○ Ensure that the Architectural Features definition includes windows
○ Where definitions match what is in the Core Zoning Code, just reference

the Core Zoning Code (so that if amendments happen, it doesn’t need to
be updated in multiple places)

○ Make sure that the definition for Public Realm includes when the property
is viewed from the water

● Change the name of Article 6 to capture both solar panels and windmills
● Ensure that it is clear that ADA accessibility requirements and changes related to

Life Safety still require review under this Ordinance if on an applicable property,
and ensure that it is clear that all standards of all relevant Town Ordinances must
be met to ensure approval

● In general, change the standards for New Construction to be more prescriptive
(save the standards from Draft 2 for the forthcoming Design Guidelines Manual)

In addition to the above, we heard questions from the public about how standards
surrounding antennas interact with Federal Communications Commission (FCC)
regulations for the same, and if there is/should be a limit for how far you can see



alterations being made. I’ve responded to these questions in the Analysis and
Recommendations sections, respectively, below.

ANALYSIS
In the analysis below I have flagged the items that I was asked to consider within the
Ordinance and have provided an explanation of how I attempted to address your
desires.

1. Require escrow to hire peer reviewer for, at minimum, Major Projects: In
Article 2, Section C.2.a, I have added language expressly mandating that the
applicant escrow funds so that the Town can hire a third-party peer reviewer to
assist the Review Board in reviewing Major Project applications. In the same
section, I noted that it would be at the Planning Department’s discretion to
decide whether or not to require the applicant to escrow funds to assist in the
review of Minor Projects. This is out of a recognition that Minor Projects are
intended to have an expedited review.

2. The installation of Accessory buildings and fencing should be considered
Major Projects, not Minor: I removed these items from the Minor Project
applicability list in Article 2, Section C.3.b and moved them to the Major Project
applicability list in Article 2, Section C.4.b.

3. Routine maintenance and repair should be Minor Projects: I removed
maintenance and repair from the list of exempt activities in Article 1, Section C.1,
and added it, along with a description of what could be exempt, to the Minor
Project applicability list in Article 2, Section C.3.b.

4. Requested Article 12: Definitions changes: In this section, I added a definition
for Architectural Features that includes windows (among other things). In the
definition of Public Realm, I added reference to water areas (so that when
applications are reviewed, views from the river or lake need to be taken into
consideration). This mimics requirements currently found in the Core Zoning
Code, allowing new lots to be created with frontage along either a road,
easement, right of way, civic space, or water body (recognizing that, in
Newcastle, waterfront is inherently public space). Finally, anywhere that there
was a definition that currently matches that of the Core Zoning Code, I simply
referenced the relevant article in the Core Zoning Code. This means that if a
future amendment occurs with changes to Core Zoning Code definitions, they
will only need to be updated in one place rather than multiple.



5. Change the name of Article 6 to capture both solar panels and windmills:
The name of Article 6 was changed to “Alternative Standards for the Installation
of Renewable Energy Systems” (and the standards were updated where
applicable) in an e�ort to address this concern.

6. Ensure that it is clear that ADA accessibility requirements and changes
related to Life Safety still require review, and ensure that it is clear that all
standards of all relevant Town Ordinances must be met to gain approval: In
Article 1, Section E.2, I added a sentence intended to underscore that activities
undertaken for the purpose of complying with other codes, standards or
regulations are still subject to the standards of this Ordinance. The intention here
is to make it clear to applicants and Town sta� that if an activity falls under the
applicability section of this Ordinance, it is required to be reviewed by this
Ordinance.

7. Change the standards for New Construction to be more prescriptive: In
reviewing Article 5 of Draft 2, the Committee consensus was that the drafted
standards were more like guidelines than prescriptive reviewing standards. I was
directed to keep the wordy guidelines for the forthcoming Design Guidelines
Manual, but to make the standards more specific and incorporate firm numbers
if I could. The revised standards in Article 5 of Draft 3 are intended to address
these concerns. I essentially distilled the guiding principles that I included
previously into what I hope are more specific standards. As we’ve discussed, this
is di�cult to do across all three districts where the existing neighborhood
context is vastly di�erent. Without creating three separate and distinct zoning
districts, requiring the burden to be on the applicant to evaluate existing context
is what I am recommending.

8. How do FCC standards and the Ordinance interact (related to the
installation of antennas and similar)?: FCC regulations say, “FCC rules for
over-the-air reception devices (OTARD) protect the rights of property owners or
tenants to install, maintain or use an antenna to receive video programming
from direct broadcast satellites, broadband radio services, and television
broadcast stations in areas within the owner’s or tenant’s exclusive use.”
However, per guidance from the FCC, local governments may impose restrictions
on the installation of antennas when the protection of historic structures is
involved. If questioned, the burden is on the municipality to prove that the
regulation is legitimate.1

1 For more information, see:
https://www.fcc.gov/consumers/guides/installing-consumer-owned-antennas-and-satellite-dishes



ADDITIONAL ITEMS FOR DISCUSSION/DIRECTION
Finally, in response to a question from a member of the public at our last meeting, I
have done some research and prepared some recommendations that I believe warrant
additional discussion. It would be helpful in preparing for the next draft if discussion at
the April 26th meeting could focus on the following questions:

1. Is there/should there be a limit for how far you can see alterations being
made?: This comment came from a member of the public who noted that his
property was set back significantly from the public realm, and who was asking if
changes would still need to be reviewed if “barely visible” or set back
significantly. Currently, Draft 3 simply states that additions or alterations which
can be seen from the public realm (defined as all public or civic lands including
publicly-owned parks and open spaces, roads, sidewalks, rights-of-way, and
frontage zones, and water bodies) are subject to review. Rooftop additions are
not allowed to be seen from the public realm at all, per this draft. Renewable
energy systems may only be seen from the public realm if the other standards of
Article 6 are met and there is no other feasible alternative, in the determination
of the Review Board.

In the case of the member of the public who raised this question, the point is
moot since his property is outside of the regulatory area of this Ordinance
(outside of the Historic Special District). However, I reviewed the properties
located within the Historic Special Districts and came up with a couple of
examples where trees along the shoreline of water bodies do not currently exist
(thus, they are not subject to tree-clearing limitations imposed by the Shoreland
Zoning Ordinance, Section 15.P) and/or where existing buildings might be set
back a ways from the public realm.

https://www.newcastlemaine.us/sites/g/files/vyhlif6211/f/uploads/shoreland_zoning_ordinance_9.9.20.pdf
https://www.newcastlemaine.us/sites/g/files/vyhlif6211/f/uploads/shoreland_zoning_ordinance_9.9.20.pdf


As you can see from the above overhead view, Lots 63, 64, 65, 66, and 67 on Tax
Map 13 have rear facades that would be seen from the public realm and would
be subject to the provisions of this Ordinance even though they are set back
approximately 140 feet from the water.



Similarly, along the Dyer River in Sheepscot Village, Lots 3A, 4, 5 and 6 on Tax
Map 20 have limited stands of trees between the buildings and the river but are
set back between 60 feet (the closest corner of the building on Lot 3A) and 220
feet from the river (the closest point of the building on Lot 5).



Finally, in the Mills, there are a few properties on the banks of Damariscotta
Lake (Lots 5, 6, 7, and 8) with limited trees that would be subject to review for
alterations seen from the water.

Given the relatively few properties not shielded from the water by existing trees
(where said trees are regulated by the Shoreland Zoning Ordinance), and the
historic resources on these properties, I would recommend keeping the draft
standards as written and regulating all facades visible from the public realm,
regardless of how far they are set back from the water. If the Committee has
di�ering opinions based on the analysis above, I would be interested in further
discussion at the April 26th meeting.

NEXT STEPS
A question came up at our last meeting surrounding next steps related to this project.
Once we are at a point where we have a draft that we are all comfortable with, I will
forward it to the Town’s legal counsel for review. Pending no edits from legal, we would
be ready to move forward with scheduling an Information Meeting with the public
regarding the Ordinance. I would like to have a few weeks advance for that meeting so
that we can send invitational postcards to all who would be impacted by the proposed
Ordinance (namely, property owners within the Historic Special Districts), which I will
coordinate.

After that meeting, this Committee will likely have an additional meeting to discuss any
public comments received and will forward a recommendation to the Planning Board
for their review. Given that this falls under the category of a zoning ordinance under
State Statute, a duly-noticed public hearing will be required by the Planning Board
prior to the Planning Board providing a recommendation of whether or not to adopt the



Ordinance as proposed. It was the thought that we would be ready to have a Special
Town Meeting on this item in the Fall.

I have also built into my approved contract with the Town time to: create application
forms and checklists related to the Historic Preservation Ordinance; train the sta� and
Review Board in reviewing applications; create a Design Guidelines Manual to assist
applicants, sta� and the Review Board in interpreting standards and proposing
appropriate construction; and time to assist the Town in applying for Certified Local
Government (CLG) status with the State Historic Preservation O�ce (this last one will
only be if the final Ordinance ends up meeting CLG Guidelines).

Attachments:
1. Newcastle Historic Preservation Ordinance, Draft 3 (tracked changes)



����������	�
�
�������������
����������������������������������� �!�"��"���#$��	%&'()'�(*)+,'-(.,�/0,'&%0)1�+%)/0'()'2%+-1�+34�)2-'2%+-�/(%0'+5($��6$���,,0,'�7%&7(%'8�&*3(%,�*0'/�9+03'+03035�'/(�+%)/0'()'2%+-�03'(5%0'8�&:�'/(�40,'%0)'$��;$��	%&'()'1�7%(,(%<(1�+34�(3/+3)(�'/(�&2'*+%4�+77(+%+3)(�+34�+%)/0'()'2%+-�:(+'2%(,��&:�04(3=>(4�/0,'&%0)�,'%2)'2%(,$��?$��	%(<(3'�'/(�4(9&-0=&3�&%�%(9&<+-�&:�,0530>)+3'�/0,'&%0)�@20-4035,�&%�,'%2)'2%(,��*0'/03�4(,053+'(4�/0,'&%0)�40,'%0)',$��A$��	%(,(%<(1�7%&'()'1�+34�(3/+3)(�'/(�(,,(3=+-�)/+%+)'(%�&:�4(,053+'(4�40,'%0)',�@8��7%&'()=35�%(-+=&3,/07,�&:�5%&27,�&:�@20-4035,�+34�,'%2)'2%(,$��B$���))(7'�3(*�@20-4035,�+34�,'%2)'2%(,�*/0)/�+%(�4(,053(4�+34�@20-'�03�+�9+33(%�*/0)/��0,�)&97+=@-(�*0'/�'/(�)/+%+)'(%�&:�'/(�40,'%0)'$��C�������!��D!�!"E���#$���/0,��%403+3)(�,/+--�+77-8�'&�'/(�:&--&*035�*0'/03�'/(��0,'&%0)��7()0+-��0,'%0)'�+,��,/&*3�&3�'/(��F)0+-��0,'%0)'�G+7�03��%=)-(�#�&:�'/(��&%(�H&3035��&4(I��+$���(9&-0=&3�&:�+38�@20-4035�&%�7&%=&3�&:�+38�	%09+%8�&%��))(,,&%8�J20-4035�03��'/(��0,'&%0)��7()0+-��0,'%0)'$��@$��G&<035�+38�	%09+%8�&%��))(,,&%8�J20-4035�&%�7&%=&3�&:�+38�	%09+%8�&%���))(,,&%8�J20-4035�-&)+'(4�*0'/03�'/(��0,'&%0)��7()0+-��0,'%0)'$��)$��
K'(%0&%��440=&3,�&%��-'(%+=&3,�'&�+38�	%09+%8�&%��))(,,&%8�J20-4035�&%��7&%=&3�&:�+38�	%09+%8�&%��))(,,&%8�J20-4035�-&)+'(4�*0'/03�'/(��0,'&%0)���7()0+-��0,'%0)'$��4$���()&3,'%2)=&3�&:�+38�	%09+%8�&%��))(,,&%8�J20-4035�&%�7&%=&3�&:�+38��	%09+%8�&%��))(,,&%8�J20-4035�-&)+'(4�*0'/03�'/(��0,'&%0)��7()0+-��0,'%0)'$��($��(*�)&3,'%2)=&3�&:�	%09+%8�&%��))(,,&%8�J20-4035,�03�'/(��0,'&%0)��7()0+-���0,'%0)'�*/(3�,2)/�)&3,'%2)=&3�*&2-4�@(�<0,0@-(�:%&9��'/(�72@-0)�%(+-9��+��72@-0)�*+8��$��:$���/(�7+03=35�&:�@%0)L1�,'&3(1�&%�&'/(%�9+,&3%8$��6$���/0,��%403+3)(�,/+--�+77-8�'&�4(,053+'(4�M&)+-�M+349+%L,�+,�4(,)%0@(4�03�'/0,��,2@,()=&3$��+$���(,(%<(4$��;$���3�+440=&31�'/0,��%403+3)(�,/+--�5&<(%3�'/(�(,'+@-0,/9(3'�+34�(K7+3,0&3�&:�M&)+-��M+349+%L,�+34��0,'&%0)��7()0+-��0,'%0)',$��N���OP�Q�"����R!������#$���/(�&3-8�+�����)=<0=(,�(K(97'�:%&9�%(<0(*�234(%��%=)-(,�;1�?1�+34�A1�+,�9+8�@(�+77-0)+@-(1��+%(��03)-24(��'/(�:&--&*035I��+$���-'(%+=&3�'&�&%�+440=&3�&:�9+0-@&K(,1�S&*(%@&K(,1�S+5,1�&%�&'/(%�,090-+%��%(9&<+@-(�4()&%+=<(�:(+'2%(,$�



����������	�
����
�����������	�	�����	����	���
����������
�������	�������	�����������
��������	������������	����������	���	�	������	�
����������
����
����	������������������������
�����������
����	�����������	��������
�
�����	����	����
�����	����	�
����������	��	 �
�	��������	���	��������������
����	����������	���
��
����������������
��
!���������	����	���
��
������������
�	��
����
��	����	�����������	���	!�
���	�	�	���������	��������	�"���#	�������	��	�	��
������������	�$����
���%	�����	��&���'������(	�	������
��	���	������	��
������������	����	�����	�
������	��	
����	���	���
���
�����)*��+,-./.0�1�234567,*��8���9�����������	�������	������	���
��
����
��:��
���	���	��	!�	��
����	�%	!�
�������	��������
��
����	�����	�����������
����������������
��	���
�����	��	�����;���9�����������	�������	���������	!�	��
����
��:��
���	�������	�����	����	
������������	��	���	��
��������	!�	��
����	�������		���	�
���������	��9	���	�<��=����
��	��%
���������>���?�	��	����@����������A�@�	���������A�����@�	 �
�	�	���A���	���	�����������	������	
!�����	��������������
��������	���B���?�	�������@�����A�@�
��A������@�����A���	�����������������	����	���	 �
�	������
��	��
���������������	���������������	 �
�	�	���������	�:��
���	���C���?�	�������@���A�����@������A���	��	��
��
�	���D*��E3FG64/FH�1�I6J5K/-.L,*��M*��E3FG64/FH*������?�
��:��
���	�
�������	�����	����	�������
��������	������NNNNN�����O*��P,K-Q6.7G/5�F6�RFG,4�SF-.T-4T7*������?�
��:��
���	���	�������������	���������������	��
�	�
��	��	�	��
��������	��	�	������	���������U������	����
���	����		�	����������9�	�	���	����������������
��:��
���	�
����	�����	��	���	���
�����������	 �
�	��������	�����
���	����	�����������	�������������	���	��	�	��������	�������������		�	�������	�����
�
��������
��:��
���	�����������������?�	����������������
��:��
���	���������	���		�	�	���	������	�������	�����	������
���	����	����������������������������������	�
����V
���
������
��:��
���	������
�����������	�������������	�������	���������
����
�������	����	������
���	����	��������������������������	���������#	�������	�
	�������
��:��
���	������������	�	����	������
���������������
����	�	�����W	�	��������X���	��������������	����������9�	�	���	�	�
������
�	�����V
���	��		����
��:��
���	��������	����������������W	�	�������X���	�Y����W	�	�������X���	�Y������	��	�	����	�����������������
��:��
���	���Z*��[-\-4T�]3/KT/.07*��̂������
�
���
����
���:��
���	������	����������	�������	��������	�	�����	����	�������%	���
��������_	��������������
��
�����	����	����	��̀����	�	���:a	��	��!	����������������
���	 �
�	��������	�����
����	����



�����������	���
������������������������������������������������������ ����!��� ����������������������""��������������#����"����������
������������$%������������������������������������&���'()���*+��,-./.	0'�(1/��
&��2.	01'.)�3'�	�'4�(1/�5�4.�6�71�',���8&��9�� �����&�:���;��������<�������=���������������>����� ������������ ���������������������"?������� ���&�:����������� ������������������ ��������������������:���>���������;��������@������A���������BA��������C��9����D�@��������E����"�D�����F��������@�����G&��H&��
��������&�9�� �����������;��������<�������=����������������B����������������G�������� ���������� ������I������������������@����� �����������������""��������������$�������&��$&��J?������=���&�
������������������������������������ �������������� ������������������������������D�!������"�D�� �����������K�����������������������������������=������L��������&�M���������������������� ������������������?��������"���!����������������K�����������������������������������=��D��?�������������D����������?�����������D��������������������?��D�������"D���"�������"D����D����������"������ ?�����"��������?�=������������&�M����!��"���������������=��D�����@����� �������������N?����������������������������������������������������������������������!����������K�������� ���? ��O�"������?��D�PED�������������?�����=��&��Q&���������?���&�:��������������������������?������������?����������������������������������������������?��������R����D���������"���? ����������"��������&��������?���������������?��������=�����������������!�����������N?������? ��C���������������?S��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������&���&��T�'(U)�0��1V����'1�'.�0�/�		���8&��M������;��������@������A�������D���P��=���������
���������������?��� ����������������<����O�"�
?�������������� ����N?���������������I��������������
�=����8D�@��=����&8��� ���&��H&��<������&�L��<�����D�����?���"�A�����=���<������D�W���<������D�������������D����� ������?�����������������?�=��D���������?�=��D�������=��D����������=���?�=����P��=����������
���������������� �������?��� ��������������������������������������������X��������&��P&��3'1)�,Y'����8&��Z�/�'�����H&������.)�(1/�[�\��	���
�P��=���������
������������������=����?��� ������D�����?���"��������������������� ������D����������<������"�A�������������������������� �������:�������������?����&���&��]	)'16���M��������������������������������������9�I���<��I�����������=�����D�����������������������������������<����O�"�
?���������������N?���������������������? �����������=�������������������:������������?�������������"�������?����������=�"�����������������N?������=�����������������?������� ������@������������



�����������	��
�������������	�����	����	�������������������������������������� !�������������������	��!"�����������	#�$	��������!��	�����$��������������������������%���������������������%&�������������'��#�������%�%���(�����	!�������������������������	#���������	���!��	��	$�������'��#���	�����������"������!���%��	�����������������"������������)	��	$�	������������*�	����������	$�����������)	����������������������������������%���������#������������������)	������	���������%��������%���������#�������������	�������!����	��������	$�������	�	��%���	������� !��������'��#�"������+���	����������'�)	����'��#�,	��%�	��#������������������	��	����	!)�����	�����������������	�����������'��#�%���������%��������)'����'������������	����	�����������������-���(!��	���������	����	������������"����'��#�%��%��������)'����"�����������������������������"���(������"����������	����	����������!%��'���	!����	���������#���������'��!��������������	$�������	����������	���!"����)�����������%������!%�����"!���	��������%���	������$	��	#���.������/������	'���	$�������������%�$���!��������������	������	���������#�����0��)	�����"��	#�
�����"���!����������'���	�����	������"�����	������������$�����������	$�����	������%�'��	������1��2���/���������������	$�������������%�$���!�����	������	���������#�����0��)	�����"��	#�#����������������%�$���!����������������3�������#�����0��)	�����
������������������������!����$���!�����������'���	�����	�������"�����#����	���������%	�1������/�����������)	��	$�������������	������������������%�$���!������!��	���%��"��%	�!�����)	�1��4������	��)�����%�	��������	�����������1��/�����������)	��	$�$������	���	#�#�����	$�#		%����	����"���3�	�����������������	����#�����	�����#������������'������'��#�����%��%�1��/�����������)	��	$����%��	��(�����	���,!��%�������������������������25��� !����$���������	����#�����	�����#��������'������'��#�����%��%�1��6���	����!�)	��	��������������	$���)	��	��%��3��#������������	�����	$��������)	�	��%��3�����	��"�������$�	�������!"���������1������78����	������������	$���������'��������"���	��������	���"	8����#����������������������������%���������%��	��	������	$�+9(�����������	��	�������������������������	��	��������������$���%�1��:���/�����������)	��	$����!�����%�'�������!�������	���	�����������	!���3����������������	���������������%������	������	��	������������������������	���	��������������$���%�1��;���(%%�)	������	'���	��������������	$���	�������'���	�����������#������������	����#�����	�����#������������'������'��#�����%��%�1��<������	'���	$�%�����	����%�������	���"!��%�����#����������	��	���������	�����������	��	����#��������	�������������=����1���5�����������)	��	$�������	��������!��!���%������%��	���	�	�����$����������$	����%�'�%!����#����%���"���)�����	��	��������������	��������!��!��������"�����	'�%���%�%	����	������������������)���$	���	$�������	�����1�



������������	�
�������������������������������������������������������������������	���������������������������������������	��
����������������	�����������������	�������������������������������������� ���!������	��
����������������	�����"��������������������		�������������	�����"����������	������"�����������		�
�������������������#�������$��������%������
��������������������	������
�����������	�&�������&�������������������'���"�������(������������������		�)���������)�����%���������������*��)�����������������������������������������+�������#�����&������,�&����-��������������&�	��.������#	�������/�����
�������������������������������*��)���������������������	�����
�������������&�	����
�����,�&����-����������������������%��.������)������#	�������/�����
����������������������������&�	������������&�	�����������	������������(��	����������������0�����#��1����
����	����������������	���������)�����&������)������,�&����-�����������������������������������������������2������������'���"�������(�������������������
���)�����	��)	��������.���������	����������������"�����������������
��������������#	��������/�����
������������	��������		�)�����
�3��������&���������������	���������&������)������,�&����-������4��%���������������������������������0������#��1����������,�&����-�����������&�����!���#	�������/�����
�������		����&���������,�&����-�������������3�������������������������������
�����	����
��������������
��������5���0�1���#��1����������#��
�6���(����������0�1���#��1����������&������)������+�������#�����&������,�&����-������������	����������)	������������)���(��	��)�	�����0�1���#��1������&�	&��������������������������������������������������
������)������	����������������0�����#��1�����!������	�����)������������	�
���������������		�����7������8���'�������������(�����������)��	�������� ���/�
�	���������������������������������9���/���&�����������������	����	�����������������������5���0�&�������)��	��������:���8����(�������	�4����������(�������-��	�������������������� *��2���������������;���,��	��
�����������������	������	���������������		�)������������������������
������	�����
������������	�����������������	����<���!��������		�����������������	�����		������������������)���������
�	���������������������
�	�������������	�&������&����������������=���'���������������	��������	���������>������������������
������:���#�������.������#	�������/�����
���������
�����������������1�������
�	������������	���)����&������)������+�������#�����&�����,�&����-����������0�1���#��1�����������
����		��)�������	�����������������&��	�)	��,�&����-�����
����������&������������������������2����
��������4����� �/����)��
�����������������
�������$��������������9*���������������	���������������)	���������������,�&����-�����
����
����������������������&���������&��������������������������������	��������;���?������1���������
�����2�������������	���&����)����������#��
�6���(���������������������!�������8�����	�������4����� �-� ��)�&���



�����������	
������������������������������������������������������������� ��!��"���� ��!��#�"�$� ��!�%�&�'������$ ������(���"� ������������������������������)������$�!��������""������*����'�� +$���������������������!��������""��� ���������"�$��������'�����,���$������)-$��!����&�� ��!���������������� ����"����&��������$���� ������������*�"���.���/012	
�����������������������������������������������'�� +$���������������������������"������3��������!�������""���4��+����������$��3������&��������"�$� ���������������������������������������$��������5�&�*��!�������������������������������"���+������!������#�*��&�6������������������������$�������������������789:�3������������������������������������������������;�����"���+��������<���#�*��&�6��������""��� ���������"�$�������������'����,���$������)-$���&����������789:�3�������������������+��"����������� �����(���=>?
2@�A0	�21BC���8���<���#�*��&�6��������""���"������3"�$��������������$�����"�$� ������'�� +$������������������������������������$������3������������������� $�������������������""�3������"����������$���3�D����*���EF�F�+����$"�������"!��������4������"�����������������*��$���������������������� $�����""��"���3����������������<�&��)-$�������������<�&�G���&�3�������������$������������"�$� ����������&���������6��"��������������� �����������H�� �����������6��"����!������� $������������""�3���H�����������3����������������&�����&������IJ9G���������3K�$������������%� $�����""�3�������3���������"�$����!�&�������$����������"������L���������3����3��D����������<�&����I�����3"�$�5������������� +$� �������������L���������M��������K�$�����*��&�������������� *�"����,���N2O0�P2O2QC��1�R0�ST@	Q0C��U��������2	Q010CC���8�������3���� �"�$������$ �����������$�����$���&���������������������������$�������'�� +$���������������������!����������*�"����""�3����""�����*�����H$������������������"��������3���H������������������ ���"���H;�������������3������<�&���"������������&��D�����L��������������"�$�����<���&��D�����L������������H�������������3�����3��D���3�����������������H���� ������������ �"������*�"���V������������*�"�������H�������������H������������3����������!��������"�$�������������"���������#�*��&�6������������� ���&����������K���$���<����H�����������""�3�������*���3������<�&���"�����!��������"������3�*�!���"������������W���������� ���"������� ������������$���������������"���������������������������������������)������$�X��3�������"��������������$���� ����������*�"X��$������������������������)������$������������3������������&�����"����������������������K�$������S@
0�YZ�[Q	1\	�\C�U����
Q0�	S�1C�	1\��\\2S�1C�



����������	
�������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� �����������!������������������������!��� ��"��������#����������������������$����!����$����������$�������������#�����!�����������"����%���&��'()*+('(,-��������!!�"�� �������������!!����������������.����"�%�������������"�� �����!������������/���0������������������������"�������!��������������������������1���� ��2��#�����������������%��!��� �������������������3��������4�����!�5�������$����"�������!����������������������������� ������6���!�6���#��7������������$��1�����������������!!����������!��������!��"�����!!���� ���������������!��8���/���9,*:;*�;	���<����������� ����� ���� ���!�=��!�����������������������������������������������#�������!!������������������������#���!�����!�����������������������#������!��������������������������!�������������!�������������"���������!���>����#���!�������������#������!�����������������������������������$�����!�������������!��������!���������#�?���"��������0��@�A<B�"�����������������"������7�����������!�#���!���������� ������#���!�����"������������������������"��������������!�C�ADB���������!���������#������!������������$��"�����!���������#������!�������������������#�!�����������������=��!���$����#������$�����!��7���D����!!�2��#������������������%��!��� ����!!�������� ��E������������������������"����#��������$��!��������������!����������������������������!���������������������!���������������������!�����!��#���������������� ����F������!������������������������!���!�#��������#�������#������������!!���������������7�����G���/�� ���"���#���������7����!���������������������#�������������������������������������!��#������������������$���F���������������������������#�����/�� ��������������=�������� ��0���������������"���� ����!!��������������������H���5�����������������$�0�����$����������������������=��������1�#�!�������7�!!�������I�#������"������������E�������������$���F��������������!!����������#�������J���5�������������������������������!!��������������������������!�����"��������������!���K����������������������������������=���������!���#���������������������������$������"������������!��#������������������� ����!����������#�������$������ �$���1�������������������!�=��!��������$�"����������!�$�#������!���.�������������!���#�������#����� ���������������������!��������������������������!��������������������$���������������������#������$�������!�������� ��������������������������������F������!����� �������������!���!���������L�����������������!��!�#���������#����������������������F�������8���������������!����� ���������������������F����$���������������$���!!�����������7����"������ ���!����#�����������!���/�#���!����������!������#����$��������������!���� $�������������#� �������������#������!����!!���������������7�����M���N�������������!���L������!!����#������������������������������ ��0�����������!� ���!������������L��������������F����������������F�����>������������#�����������������$�#�� �����#����������!!�����������7�����O���/����#����������� �������������������1���� �������������!!���������������� ����"��������!��������������������������������������� ��0�������!����!$���������!$�������������!���������!� ���!�#������!���������������E��������������������"�"��7�



�����������	
���������������������������������������������	��������	������������������������	������������������������������������	����������������	���������������������	���������������������������������������������������	�����������������������	����������	������������������������������������	������������������������������������	�����	�����������	����	����������������������	���	�������������	�������������������������	���������������������������������	�������� ������������	������������	������������!���	"���������	���������	������������	�������������������	����������	�������������	#����������	���������������$������%&'()*�+,�-./01/&12�34&�5*64)7'402�/01�8*)4(/'402������9:&;42*<��=����������������	�����������	��������������������������������	��>��	�����������������	����	����	����	��	������	�������	��������������������������������������	��������������������	���������������=�����?�����������������������������	��������	������
��������=�������	����	�����	���������������������������	������������������	����������	��������������������������	��������#�	�������������������������������������	����	����	��	������������������������	������������������������������������������������������������	����	���������������������������������������������	��	�����������������@����	�����A���%;;)7(/B7)7.C<��=���������	�����������������������������������D��	���A�����	�����	��	��������	����������E��F���������������	�������������G����	������D���������������H	�����!�	�����A�	��	���	������������	��	������I	����	��J���	���G	���	����������������G����	�������D����������������	�������K�����K��������	�������������E���-./C<�������������	��������������	���������G����	�������D�������������D��	���A����������	�������	������������H����	��������������������������������	���������������E��F����������������	�������������������L�������������������������������	����M���NL��������	�����������H�	����������������������	��������E���	��	���F�������������������������������������������������H������������D��	���A������������������������������������	��������	������������OL�������=�������������������������	��������	�����������	�����	��F��	�����������������G����	������D����������������P��N������	����	�������	�������	���������������	�������������������������	��������������������������Q�����R���?	��	�����������������������������������������������������	�������������	������	�����������������Q�����O�������	�	������������	���������������	���������������������������������	��	�����������������������	�����	�����	������������������������������������G���-./01/&12<��M��������������������������	��������������������������	�������	��	����	��	�������I	����	��J���	���G	���	�����������G����	������D����������������	�������K�����K��������������D��	���A����������F�����������������������������������������������������	��������������������������P��N���=���D��	���A�����������	�����������������������	����������	����	���	��	F����������������F��	�������������S�	���I	����	��!����������E���	��	��������#���	F�������	�����������	����	���������M������������������	��������	����������D��	���A�������������#�	������������	������������	������T������������S�	���I	����	��!����������E���	��	���������������������	�������=��������	�����#���	F�������	����������	����	�������������



���������	
���	��������������������������������������������������������	
��	��������������������������	�������������������������	��	���������
����������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������
���	�������	�����	�������	����	��������������	
��	�����������	���������������������	���������������������	������������������������ ������������������������	������
������������	�������������������������������	���������	���	!	�����������������	�������	��������	���������"������������	�����#��������������	!	����	��������	�	���������	���	������	��������	����������������	$��������������	
�������	�����	����������������������������� ������%�������������	�����&�	������������	�����������������"����	����'�����������	�����������������������������������(��������������	�����	������	�����	
"���)�������	���������������	�����������"����*�	�������	$����������������	
�������	�����	����������������	��	�����	
"���	�	�����������	
������	�����	
"������������
���������������	��������	������	������	���������	�������+��������	�������	������	���������	
�����������	�����	����������������	���������,������������,�	��#�������������	����	��������������	����������������������	������������	���������	
�����������������	�����	�����	��������
�����-.��/01234015�06�78890:;<�609�=>?0<3401.�����	����"�����	��	�����	
��������������	�����������������������������@����	������������������������
������	�������	����A��	��A	���	�$�������"�����*�	����	���������������������������
��������	����������	�����������	�������	����������������������������	'���������	"��������������B��C��� ��	�����	����	���	����������"����*�	������������	��@�����������	���������������������"	
�����
���������*�	��D������������������������������������������	�����������������������������D���������
��������� ��	�����	����	���	�"��
��������������	����������������������	��	"	��	����������������E���������������������������"���������	����������	�"	����	����	���� ��	�"��
���������	���	���	�����	������	����������	��������	
���	����������������
������794F<>�GH�IJ;12;925�609�K>L�/015J9MF401�;12�72234015��N���OM9805>.�� �����������������������
������������������������������������P����	�������	���������������������
���������������������@����	������������	��������"��������������	�����	��������������
	���	�	��������������������� ���������
������"�������	��	���������������	�����������������	������������	������������	��	����������������	
����������������
	���	�	�����������������������*���788<3F;Q3<3JR.�� ��������������	��	�����	��������������������"����*�	��������"��������	�����	
��������S��
#�	������N�������	���������������S�������
������	�����	������N����������*������������	��N���
������	�����	������N���������*����������������������������������������@����	�������������S���IJ;12;925.��C���IF;<>�;12�609?.�����	���
�����������,���������������������������@����	�����������	������������������S����T������S�����N�
�����B����������@�	��	����	�������	��	���	�����	������������@�	��	����	��������������N�
����U�����������������	��	�������	�������������������	���	���������	���	����	����B�



����������	
���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������� ������!��������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������"#$���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������%�����������������������������������������%��������������&�����������������������%����������������������� �����'����������������� ���������������������������(�����������������������������)�����*������%������������+����������������������������������������������������������������� ������!&�!�������� �����������������%��� ������������������������������� �����!������������%���������������������������� ��������,��������� ����!���%�����������%�������������������������������������-�.	�
�����������������������)�����������������������������������������������������������!����%�%�����������������������%�������������������������������/012103145�16�20�47�289�6878.�5
��'��������������%�%������������������!�������%�������������������������������!&��������������������������%��(����!������%������������� ������������!��������������������%��������������������������'����������������������������%��:������%������������������������� �������������������������������������������������������������������������:��������������������������������������;������!�����%����������������%����������!���<�����������������������������������������������������������%����������������������������������������)������������������������������������=�������������������%�����>� ����?������������������������!�������)�������������������������������������������!������������������%�������������%�������������@1165
��A���@116�5�82�5
��B�����������������,�����������������%����������������)���B��������������������������C�����%������������������������������������%��������:����������������������:��B�����������������������,�������������������'��������������������������������!������������������������������������'�����������������%���������������������������������������������������:��%����������������������%����������!���<�����������������"���@11D12�8..�3145
��>��E��������������������������������������!����������������%�������������������������������!������������������������������!���������������������������'�������������������������!���������������������������)�%��������������%������������������)��������������,������������������������������������F���@11D12�G39�3�5
����������E������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������ ����������������������������!��!����������� �������������������������!����������� ������!����������%���������������������������������������������������!�������������������������!��������������%�������� �������������������������������������������� ��������!�������������� ���������)������������)�����������������������������:��%�����������������������%����������!���<���������������;������ ��!�����E�����������



�������������	�
�����	������������������������������������������������	����������	���������������������������
����������������� �!"������#$���$ �!���%���&!�!'�"��(����	�����)	���*�����
��������)����������
�����
��
��������������	�����
�����������
���+��������
������������������	����������
�����
,�	�������
���������������	-��.�	���������
��)������,�	)����������	��������+����������������
����
���	�������������������	��������������
���/�������������	��������
����������������	�
��������01231���%�&!3$4!5&�6���$51&�6�4!7��31&$��$�8&5 �!�"��(����	�����)	�������	������
����������,�	)�����������	���������
�����
,�	�������
���������������	-�������������	��������
����������������	�
����	���0&94 �!�1����%��43&$�49�"��:��
�������������������������;�	)��������
��	�����������������<��)������
�����������������������	�
�����	���=�������������������
��������
��������>?��������@����A������	�����������������������	������
�����������������
���<��������	��������������	������������
��������
�����	���������������������B��������	�����������������������������
�����<��)����������	�������������������
�������	��������������������
���������
�������)��*������������	������������
�������������������
��=����������������������	��
�����
���������������>?�������
������������
���������	����C���0&94 �!�1���3���3$&&3"��D���

�)�������������?������������������E������	�F��	����G�����	������������
��������(����H������(�
���@�)	����I�G�����	��F���
��
�����������������������
��
���������
������������)�����������������������	�����	)�����
����������������������������I������J499���%�5�! !K�32"��L�	�
�����
���������	��������	�����������������������	������
����
�	��������������������������������	����	�����)	��������������������	�������������������	������������������������������������	��)������������������	����������	��������
����	���������	���	�����������������������������
�������M!�%2�!'�7&N&9���&!3��4O&$!"��B�������	�����	)�������������������������������
�������������+�����	�����
���	)������<���������������
������������	-������
����	�����������
��������)�������������������01231���%���45�!'��4!7��3$K53K$&���!��3$&&3�"��B��������	�����	)������A������
������������;�	�������������	����	�����)	�������������	�
����������������������D��������	���������������������������
�������������	�������������������������������������	�����������
�������������������
�����������������������)����B�����������������������
�����
����������	��������
���������
�����
��������������������������������
��D����
����
�������������������>�<������������	�����	)�������
��������
���������������������������������������	�������������������	��)�����������P��	���Q�$&5 �!49�&R�$&����!��%��$�!5��49�&9&N4 �!"��B�������������������������
�������������	��������������������������������	�������
�����������������������	����	�����
��������������������
��������	���?����
�����������������������	�������������
�������������)	��������*�������������>
���	)�����	����	������B���
���	)������<�������������
,�	�������
���������
������-���������		����������
��������������A������
��������-������������������������������������	����



����������	�
����������������������
����
�������
�	�
���������
�������������������������
����
���
�	
������������
�������
�
���������
������������������� !"#$%�&'%'���(����������������
��
)���
�
�����������
�*��������+	
�����,������������������
�������
�-��
�.������-��
��/����
�01�,��������+�������������2
��������		������
�3�
�+������������������
�����/����
�4������
�-��
�.������-��
��
���
�����
�������
�
5�����������
����
����	�����
������	����
���
�������	��	
�����2������
)���
�������������
�����������
��������
�6�
7������
����
�������
����
����������
�������
�����������
���	��	
��������������������������
��
��	��	��
�����89'":;&9'<9:;��=9;9:!$�><!=!>?%=���@�
�������������������������)�����
�������������
����������
���������
�������
��������������
��
�����
������A=><%�$�;9>!$�=%'�&=>%'���B�
����
�������
�
5������������
����
����	���
��������	�
�
��
������7���������
����������
�����
���5
��
����������C��
�����������	��C
���(���
�����
��������
��������
�������������
����
���������
�����
���D
���A=">$%�EF�A$?%=:!"G%�H?!:I!=I'�J�=�?<%�K:'?!$$!"�:��J��L%:%M!#$%�N:%=;O�HO'?%�'��H�$!=�P!:%$'��AQ��R��	��
�S
�����T������������������	��	
��
�������

��������	���������������
��������
����������
�����������
��
�����	�����
���
�������������������
��
��
2������
������������������
�
2���
��
�
��������
���������������������������
������������	��
�������2������������������������	��	
��
����������������UQ��/		�����������@�
������2���������������������
���
�������
�S
��
2�V���������
��
2������		�������������-
��7���
����/		��	����
�
���2�
����
������������������
�
2���
�
�
���������
�����
�	��	��
���������	��
������	��	��
�������R����������/��
������V�����������������	��	
�����2��������
�*��������+	
�����,�����������������
������
��W�����W������D��	��	
��������Q��+����������X��R
����
����
���������������������7������
���������	���������
����������������������	��
�������������
�	����������������������������
����
���D
���0��R
����
����
������������
�2��
����
���������������������
�
�
����������7���������Y��Z������
���������
����������
���
����
���[�����������
�	����������������������������
�����
���D
���\��/���������������	���
���
������2��������
����
�
�����
������
���������������
����
���������
���������������
�	����������������������������
����
���D
������@�
�	���
�
��������������	��
��������	����������
�����
�����������
����7��������������
�����
���D
���]��@�
�	���
�
������	��
������������������	
��������
������
��������������
�������
�������	���
������������
����
���D
��+�����	��
������������̂��������
�������4��_�
�
�	������
��������
�
2���
�
�
��������
����������	��
�����������
�	���
������������2�����������
����
������
�����
��

���������
�	�������
����(��������������
���������������	�����
�2������
�����
�����������������
��		����������	��	���������������������
�
2���
��
�
��������
���������	��
���������2������
�������
��������
�	�������
�������
��		���������������������������
�����
������������
�����������2�����
������
���	��
���������������
�



������������	��
���������
�����������������	����	������������������	����
���������	�
���	�
�����	�������
	������������������������������������������	��������	
�������	�����
�����������������	�����������������	����������������������������	������
�������������	�������	������
��������������
������
����������
��	
�	������	�����������	
���������
������	����
	�������� !"#$%�&'�()*+,$-)./%0*�12�3-)*1!-#�45%#-+$�6-)*!-#*)�� 7��89!51)%7���	���	����������������
���
���	������	����������������
�	������
��	
�	��:��	�����;�������<���������
����	���
������������=>�?��@���;�?�A�B=CD�EF	
�
��G���
�
���H����������������
������	������	�������I7�� 55$-#+,-$-*J7�����������	
�������������	��
������	
��	������������
���:��	����;�������<������	�������
���
������
��:��	����;�������<������������������	����	��������	
�
����K7��8!1#%L9!%7��M7�� 55$-#+"107��?
������	
�	����	������N�
��	�����	�������
�����	��������������������O�����������
���
��
�����
��	����:��	����P��������	
���������	�����?
����	�	�����������;�����	����	��P��

�
���	����������������������	������������	�����	���	���
�����	����
������������	
��?Q����������
�������������	���R�����	���
���	
���	
���
�
�������O����������S������������������	
�������
����	�����P��

�
���	������	����������	
�������	
��?
����������	
���	�������
��	
�	��������������������
�����
����T7��4*9L-%)�+0L�!%#1//%0L+"10)7�����	�����N�
��������	���
���	
���	
���
�
��������	�	��������������
�	������
��	
�	���
����	�����������������������	����������	
������������
�����������	
������	�	�����������������	������������N�������	��	
����������O�����������������
������	
����<��Q��	��������	�����������	�����������	�����@��
��:��	����P��������	
�U	������	
��	�����������V7��89,$-#�.%+!-0W7��P��	��	���N�
�������	���
���	
��	
���
�
��������	�	���������������
�	������
��	
�	���
����	�����������������������	�����������	������������������
��	
������O������Q�������
	���������	������������
���
���������	����
��������������	
����������	�����X�����������	
���������������YD���������	�����������
����
���������	�����D
����������	
���������������Z���������	�����������
��������
	��������������S�
��
�����
�[
��������
�����
�����������������������\�
��@�������
	����	�������	�	�������������	������
�	�����������
��	�
����	��������	�����	������
�����������
������	�	���������
��	
���
����	���������
���DC>��		��������	��������	������
�����	
�������	
���]7��̂-0+$�!%51!*7��_	��������
�=>�������Q�������������������
��������������	�������������������X
������	��	����P��

�
���	�������������������	���R�����	���
���	
���̀7��̂9!*.%!�+#"107��?Q����������	�����U	������	
R������	���
���	
��������	��������	��������P��

�
���	���������������=>������	�����������	�����������������
��E
	������
������������

�����������������
��������	
�U�=���	��H�	��	
�������������	�	����������
��	
��
����������	������
������	
������	���
���	
�	
������O����	�����������������	�����67��($-W-,-$-*J�21!�3-)*1!-#�6%)-W0+"107���������	�������������������������
����	���
����������������	
������������	
��	���	���	������	��	��
���������������a��M7��3-)*1!J�12�b%c#+)*$%7��;���������������
���	�������������������
�������	�������������	
������	��
���������
�X�������	�����
�X��
����������
�	�����������������	���



�����������	
���������
�
���������������
���
���������
���
�������������������
���������
��������
������������������
��������������������������
��������������������
��������	���
��	��������������
��
��������	�������������
��������������������� !��"#$%&'%!�����������������������
����������
��������������	
����������
����	��
�����(!��)*#+%!�����������������������
����������
��������������	
���������	���
��������������
���������,!��-$./01#.12$#!������������
��������������������������������
���������	���
������������������	��
���	���������������
�����������
����	��
��������
�����
��
�������������
�������
�3��
�����������
���
��������
�����4��
������������3��������	���3�����������
�������������3�
���������	�����������
�5�
������������������������������������������
���������	������������6!��70%2+8�.&'9'201:!������������
�������������
������������
����
��������������
��������
����������
���������������;!��<+9&'+8�=#>0%1#$!��?�
�������
�������������
���
����������
���������
��������
�����@������
��A���
����B�������-$9.8#�CD�E%1+F80%/G#'1�&H�I&.+8�I+'*G+$J%��-!��"2$K&%#!��?
�	�
�������������������	�
�����
������������������
��L
����L������5����������
�����������?����MNO�����@�����P�QMRS�TU
�����V��������W�������������������
�������
������X!��-KK80.+F0801:!��?�������
���������		����
�����	��
����
������������L
����L������5���
����������
�������Y�����
��Z�S�����������
����
����	��
�������[!��"$&.#*2$#!��\!��-KK80.+9&'!������	��
��
����
�	��5�����
��������L
����L������5��
������V����������������]��������������������������
����A���
����B������
��@����Z
����������	�
	
���������������
����
��B��������Z
�������������������
����@����Z
�����
����
�������
����������������
����̂�������������@����Z
���_����
������
����
������������]��������������������	�����
������������
�����B��������Z
������
����������
�������
��������		�����
����
���������
��
��L
����L������5����������������������� !��̀12*0#%�+'*�$#.&GG#'*+9&'%!��Z�
����5����������
������
����
������������	�
	
���������������
����L
����L������5�����@����Z
���������
�������������������������
�����	�
	
�����?��@����Z
������������5����	
���
�������]�����������������������
������a��̂��
������	
������������
����������
����������A���
����B������
��b
������
���
���������(!��"2F80.�/#+$0'>!��B��
���
���5��������
������
���
������������	�
	
����������������
����L
����L������5�����@����Z
�����������
�����	�������������
�������]������̂������
������	�
������������������	�	��
����������������
���?�������
�����c����	�������
�����������������YS��������
�����������������������
������S���	�������
�����������������d��������
�������������?���
��������������������	�����e������������������������������������4����������
���
������	�
	
�������������
��������
�����		���������������	�
	�������������SRNO�

���������
������	�
	����������
�������
���



�����������	
��	��������������������������������������� !����� �"#�����$�% �&�'���������������( ����)������������������*���� �"�'�����& �������$�% �&�'����+����!�((����,��-��.����/	0
	��12�����3������!� ����4�����5�(( �� ��+�����!�((����,���#�������% �������%�#������*���� �"�'����������#�& ������������4���!� ��#������������ !����� �"�6��,!��� ���������(��(������������!� ���� �������!,���5-�����%�7����!��� ������ ��������������� "��,����������������% ��������� ,�������!�((����,������������8���������������" ���,%������-��9���:��;�<���=�>�	�?�@�	�1�9
@�;��2�����A���B�!���B���(��C��������� ����� ���!!�����!��& ����� �����!,�����������%���������(�����4�����4����& �"�!����!��� �,!�D��E���?�@�	=��>�F
G1�@�
���H���!�����#��� �� �"������ ��������&� !���%�������%���!!������������!���� ���������������� ���,)���& ������� "� )!��������������������I�(�� 4�������������!�������#���� ,!��#��!���( !#�( � ����#������! ���� �������4���&!�����#�����H������4�J� ��#�����������,��#� �!��� �"�� ��������� �� �"�����&� !��% � �����(���"� �� �� "������������I�(������4����,!����� ��(������4����"�����K����� ������������3(�� !������ ��"�-��L���M
	@��@���H���!�����#��� �� �"������ ��������! ������& ��� (��������� ���� !��������-��N���OP
�@���H���!�����#��� �� �"������ ��������! �����& ���� (���������I�(������4���"����� �������� ����-������Q	10�
1/	
���H���!�������������!��������(� ��������� �����(���� �"��I�(������4����!� ��!������������������! (����%��������4��������������4������ ��#����������(�������4���� �� �"�!������!,��R�4��������������4�!�((�� �����"�� S�,�������� % �"R������!�� �"R����� �"���������������!����R������� �����������,�"�����&��C��4���(�������� ����#�(���������� "���#���!� ��!����������!������!� ��!�-��.���F�2�����T
;�@
	���A������ �������������� �������������� " ����4���� �,�"����������,������$�" ������4�U ���� !�*��!��-��Q	21�
�VW�O�
	�X�M	�
12���>�	�F�X���2��@��Q���F�X���
P�Y�1���Y��PX�	Z@���P�?�@�	�1�9�@	�1@���[��(�����,(���4���( ��,�����,�������U ���� !�*�����%�,���$�% �&�'������!����������!����( ��,��#���� ��#�����!����#���\�!�������������( ��������������������� "�����������B�!���B���(��C����U ���� !�H��! ���] ��� !�#� �!��� �"���I���� ��������I �,�"�U ���� !�������������\�!����������4��������% � �����4�3�,!���̂�"�%��� �"����(�� ,��#����������(���I�������� 4���� "�����-�_����)�����!,����4�����U ���� !�*�����%�,����$�% �&�'�������!�((��� �"���� "��,��#���������!���������������( ������������������\�!�����������4����������!,�����4��� ��̀�� ���!����,����!��,(�������)������! � ��������� "��,�������������" ���,%���������!�(����a�!,%�-�b4�������" ���,%���������\�!������ "��,������4� ��������� "����������������#���������������������������"���������\�!������������% � �����4�3�,!���̂��4��� ���̀�� ���!�-��Q	21�
�EcW�d���
���1
���P�F
;�
1��3-��3���B�!���B���(��C�#�������������!��������!����� ������U ���� !�H��! ���] ��� !�#����������������%�����"� ������!������������ ���,�������� �"�C����4����4��(�����4����& �"�����!��������4�!������������&�������e�������������������������������&���(�����%����"���!�����������!�������������4D��f-��]���� ���������� ����8�����4�����,���&� !��\������ S��� �������!������ ���"� ��R�



�����������	��
�������
������

������
���
�����������������������
�����������������
�����������
�����
����������������������
������������������������������ ���!�������
�������"������
��"�
��
����	�����������
����������"�����"����"�
�����#��������
�������	����������
�������
���
����������
������������������������������$���%����������������
����������������

��"�
��
�����
���
��������������������"�����������"�����"�
�����#�������
�������	�����������
�������
���
��
������
������������������
����������
�����
����������������������
������������������������������&���'����������
��������������������"������"�
����(�������
�������	����������
��������
���
��
������
�����������������
���������
����������
�����
�����������������������
������������������������������)���*��#�
�����������
���
����������
�����������������������������
����������"��

��"��
���
�����
����+���,
��������
���
������������������������
�����#�
�������������
���������������������
�������
�������,
���-��
�������.�������,���/����	����������
�������������������������
�����#�
����������������,
���-��
��������.��������"�������
����
��
�����0
��"��������������������������
��
����1����2����
��������
���	����������������
�����������/������
�������
	��������������������������������
��3��"����,
���-��
�������.�������������
���������
�����
�����
�����	�
���
��
������4�������4��������
�����������������������"������������������
���
�����#�����������
������������������������������������������
���
��������"����������������3������������,
���-��
�������.������
������
����������
���
����
������
�����
��������2�������"����
��
�������������-���0���
�����
�������
��������
���������������������������
�����������������������2�������
��
����������
�������(���
�����
��
������������
���������"��
��������������������������������	����������
�����������
������������������
����
������.�����������56789:�;;<�=>?@68:A:>B��4���C����������������������
����
�#�
����������
�#�
�����
���
������������
������
������
�����������,���2����
��4���
��������������
��������������
�#�����������
��
�������
���������������������
	��������	�������������.��������"�
������
����.���������
�����0
���
���D�������"�
����������
��������
���������
	������1����������������.���������
������
�����.���������
�����0
���
��D�������"��
���������
���
���������������
����
����������������
���������������E�����������������
��������F��
����E�����	��
��G�	����+
��������������
�#��
������
������
	��������
������
��
������������������1���������
���������	����.�����������+���G�	����
��������������
��������E�����������������
��������F��
����E�����	��
��G�	�����+
�����������
��
���������	���
�������������������������0
����
���������	�
���
���������������
��
�����0
�����
����
������������	�
���
����,���'�������
�����
������������1�������������.���������
��
�������
����
���
������
	���
�������,���2����
��4���
��������������������������"�
������
�������
�����������
���������������.��������"��������
��������	�
���
����������������
���2��������
	�������� HI4�!�G�%��J$$&�"�



���������������	�	
�����	����������������������������������������������	�����������������������������������������������������������������������������������������������
������� �!"#�$ %&'�(&)����� ))(�*�+,'�-'&.#��/����������	�0����������	����1������2�������3����4����5�3�	�
��1���		������������	��5����������������������������	������56������7	������5�����6���������������������
���--'�(&#��1��������������������������������������������5����������������
�8���������	������������		�������		�	���������	�������������������������������������		�������		�	����������������������
���--'�(&9��:;�,�;,� #��/����������	�0����������	����1������2�������3����4����5�3�	�
����; �9�(&#��<����������������������=�	������6����������	������1��������5�������	��5����������6����0�5�����������6�����	�����6�5�>���6�	������	����	���������	�����5����	�����������������6�������6����������������	���6���������6�����?���6����	�������������6�	���������	������6�������56����������6��������6������������	�������5���	������	���������
�8���	�0����������������	�������		�����������@����������������6��?���5��6��������6���	��������������������������������������
���AA�'�9&;#��/����������	�0����������	����1������2�������3����4����5�3�	�
��1�����������������������������>�	����������������������������	���������������������	��	���������=�	������
�����B'; �;,�9��C 9;,� #��8����������������������������	���5������6�	���5�6�5������������5�����6���	���������������������������������������	��5�������������6������	��56���������������	���D�	������������������6����?��	����������������������	��5����������6���	������������	����������������	���6�	����6����5��6���	�������
��E ��%�9; �(F��AA�(A�'9; & ))#��8�����������	���������������	�����5���������������������������������	��	���������=�	������
��$ G(�'�(&#��8����H��5����������	��5���������������������������������������������������������������������������������������I���
��J');(�'��:A �'9��$');�'�;)#��8���������������=K������L��������M���������8�������N��������6�M��������������������	�	����������������
�8��=K�����L��������M�����������	�	����1������O�������3����4����5��3�	�
��P .')�9�Q �+(-*#��R������������8�������N���������������	���7�����	�8����M����5
��P(�9��P9&-G9�S)#��8�������������6������������������	�������	��������T��������/�������L��������6�������������������	���5����	����U�����U��	���?����������	�	����1������V��������=�	������
��W'&(����; �9�(&#��X���	���������5�������		����������������	��5������������������������������������������5������������5��0����������������������������������������������
�X�����������������������5������	����	����������6�������	�������������������Y������5�L�����������8����Y��������6��������5��������������������������������������������	��5
��Z [�E(&);�,��(&#��N��������������������	��������������������������Y����������1���������\���	��5�����������6������������������	��5��������7��	7���������������������������7�����]�����������	
�



����������	�
��������������������������������������� !��"��������#����$����%�#���&����'����(���)��!���%�� �'�)!������  �'*��%���!������������!������ ����&������+�,�
�-�+��.�/������+�,�
�0
.1�2/����3���������������)��!���%��� ��%�����������&���	4
�+�5.�
�����!!�'�)!� ���� �6� �!������� !����%��'�)!� !*7�8����'��9�������'����'� ��:�������:�����8�!9�:����%���7��78�*:�������������%��;������:�����8�����)�������&��5.1�.<��/������3���=�8 ���!��>������ �?�����6������@�6��8�A����:��������)!������)*���� !��B����������C������ �&��D.�,/�������E�������'��'��������������C������ �:����������3��'����*����!!���6�����������������%�����3��'����*����� ����:�������!����������� !��F:��� ����G��������#����$����%�#���&�


	HPC_Agenda_04.26.2023.pdf
	HPC_Minutes_02.16.2023.docx (2).pdf
	HPC_Minutes_03.23.2023.docx (1).pdf
	HPC_Minutes_04.06.2023.docx.pdf
	MEMO_HP Ordinance Draft 3_04.26.2023.pdf
	DRAFT 3_Historic Preservation Ordinance_04.26.2023.pdf

